ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
March 25, 2014
10: 03 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Eric Feige
Representative Lynn Gattis

Representati ve Bob Herron

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Craig Johnson
Representative Kurt O son

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 25

Urging the Governor to request that the North Pacific Fishery
Managenent Council analyze the option of including community
fishing associations as entities that nay be granted catch
shares in any traw bycatch managenent program for the Qulf of
Al aska.

- MOVED HCR 25 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HCR 25

SHORT TI TLE: CATCH SHARES | N NPFMC GROUNDFI SH PLAN
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF FI SHERI ES

03/ 14/ 14 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 14/ 14 (H) FSH
03/ 25/ 14 (H) FSH AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REQ STER

HENRY M TCHELL

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HCR 25.

ALEXUS KWACHKA
Kodi ak, Al aska

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- March 25, 2014



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 25.

ERNEST WEI SS
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 25.

ALAN PARKS
Hormer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 25.

CHUCK MCCALLUM Director

@ul f of Al aska Coastal Conmunities Coalition

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 25.

JOHN V\HI DDON
Kodi ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion on HCR 25.

DAVE KUBI AK
Kodi ak, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 25.

EM L CHRI STI ANSEN, Secretary

A d Harbor Native Corporation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 25.

FREDDI E CHRI STI ANSEN, Secretary

A d Harbor Native Corporation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 25.

THERESA PETERSON

Kodi ak Qutreach Coordi nat or

Al aska Marine Conservation Council (AMCC)

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 25.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 03: 00 AM

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Special Commttee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 10:03 a.m Represent ati ves
Herron, Feige, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Seaton were present at the

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2- March 25, 2014



call to order. Representative Gattis arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HCR 25- CATCH SHARES | N NPEMC GROUNDFI SH PLAN

10: 03: 37 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO 25, Uging the Governor to
request that the North Pacific Fishery Managenent Counci
analyze the option of including comunity fishing associations
as entities that may be granted catch shares in any traw
bycat ch managenent program for the @ulf of Al aska.

10: 04: 04 AM

CHAI R SEATON opened public testinony on HCR 25.

10: 04: 07 AM

HENRY M TCHELL stated he has been involved in North Pacific
fisheries for over 30 years. He originally worked for the
Bering Sea Fishernman's Association from 1980 to 1996 and
currently works for Coastal Villages [Region Fund], but he is
speaki ng on behal f of hinself. He said he served on the North
Paci fic Fisheries Managenent Council (NPFMC) in the early 1990s
when the community devel opnment quota system was devel oped. He
recalled that at the time he made notions to include the Gulf
comunities; however, the council preferred not to do so. He
said he believes local communities in the @Qulf of Al aska would
benefit by the NPFMC passing community quotas. He urged nenbers
to pass HCR 25.

10: 05: 44 AM

ALEXUS KWACHKA stated his support for HCR 25. He said he
personally has lived through two rationalization prograns in
Kodi ak that directly affected him in the halibut and sabl efish
and crab prograns. He supported this as a neans of adding
anot her tool for the NPFMC He enphasized the inportance of
anchoring quota in comunities in perpetuity and remarked that
| osing access to fisheries in Al aska would be a tragedy. He
encour aged nmenbers to nove this resolution forward.

10: 06: 36 AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- March 25, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked for further clarification on the
rationalizations and which conmunities were negatively inpacted.

MR. KWACHKA answered that he has nore famliarity with the
hal i but and sablefish fisheries, but in his view, Kodiak | ost
out in the crab program which has resulted in a huge reduction
in the fleet; direct economc loss to the community; and a major
i mpact on |ocal businesses. Consequently, the halibut and
sablefish fleet size was drastically reduced. He reiterated the
i nportance of keeping these fisheries as comunity-based
fisheries in order to gain nore |ocal control

10: 08: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked him to identify two comunities
negati vely inpacted by rationalization.

MR. M TCHELL answered that some of the comunities on the
[ Al eutian] Chain, in particular, were left out of the prograns.
He said Sand Point and Chignik in some regards has been
substantially inpacted by being left out of many of the
pr ogr ans. He said that if the NPFMC had adopted a conmunity
devel opnent reginme for the Gulf of Al aska comrunities, nmany of
t hem woul d be much better off today.

10: 09: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked what |everage would the governor
have in encouraging the [NPFMC] to have this option.

MR MTCHELL said that the governor has influence through
relationships wth council nenbers, and the governor could
encourage the council to pass regulations that wll benefit
communi ties.

10: 10: 36 AM

CHAI R SEATON related that the commttee has asked the governor
via HCR 25 to put protections for Alaskan coastal conmmunities.
He clarified the legislative intent is to ask the governor as
chief executive of the state to inform the council to protect
coastal comunities.

10: 11: 24 AM

ERNEST WEISS said he works for the Aleutians East Borough, has
lived many years in King Cove, and he now lives in Anchorage

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- March 25, 2014



He addressed the nenber's question regarding rationalization,
stating that King Cove was severely inpacted by the crab
rationalization program He offered his support for HCR 25, the
NPFMC, and the option for comunity fishing associations (CFAs)
for the @lf of Aaska traw bycatch rmanagenent program
currently being devel oped. He said that inclusion of CFAs could
mtigate sone of the potential negative inpacts inherent in a
catch share program by anchoring quota in the communities and
keeping entry-level opportunities open for fishernen. I n
addition, the CFAs could -enhance sonme of the conmunity
protections already being considered as part of this program
He has regularly participated in the NPFMC process and conmends
the state on its leadership in this bycatch action. The current
structure can be found in the [NPFMC s] OCctober notion, which
contains innovative elenents that will give sonme protection to
coastal comunities, including consolidation limts, I|imted
duration of shares, requirenment for active participation, and
including the community as part of the co-op. He supported
t hese community protections but also strongly believes including
the CFAs could enhance existing elenents to reduce bycatch and
benefit coastal conmunities. He urged nenbers to nove HCR 25.

10: 13: 39 AM

ALAN PARKS said he is from Homer and is in his 38th year of
fishing in Alaska and that his teenage children fish with himin
the sumrer. He said he supports HCR 25. He has been through a
nunber of privatization prograns that are in place - the crab
rationalization program and t he hal i but/ sabl efi sh | FQ
[ I ndi vidual Fishing Quota] program He expressed concern about
his son's opportunities to enter these fisheries, since entry
| evel opportunities are |limted primarily due to costs.
However, the type of community-centered fisheries supported in
HCR 25 could provide a road map for shaping future fisheries and
allow people to be part of a healthy economc and social
environment in coastal communities. He urged nenbers to nove
HCR 25. He offered his belief that the CFAs are a neans to best
benefit Al aska's communities.

10: 16: 45 AM

CHUCK MCCALLUM Director, @ulf of Al aska Coastal Communities
Coalition, stated that he regularly participates in the NPFMC s
public process. He encouraged nenbers to pass HCR 25. It takes
a concerted and extraordinary effort for comunities, whose
interests are at stake, to effectively engage in the public
process at the [NPFMC] and be heard. He asked nenbers to add

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- March 25, 2014



their voice to this effort. This resolution, HCR 25, does no
nore than to ask for nore information on how giving an
allocation of fishing quota mght be a better way to protect
communities by pronoting a good jobs-based fishing econony for
everyone in the Kodiak Island Borough and the broader region of
the Gulf of Al aska fisheries.

MR. MCCALLUM said the state has included in the current [ NPFM]
motion what it believes nmay adequately address the issues of
community protections; however, he believed that those static
approaches are very likely to fail in significant and
unpredi ctable ways while the inherently dynamc and adaptive
i nvol venent of a community fishing association (CFA) is much
nore likely to effectively pronote and maintain the healthy m x
of fishing related jobs that the conmunity needs. He
acknow edged that fishernmen often don't see any upside for them
in this and inmagine innunerable ways that the CFAs mght be a
problem but w thout getting a clear notion on the table and
analyzing it, it won't be possible to put those fears to rest.
Pl ease pass this resolution, he said.

10: 18: 50 AM

JOHN WHI DDON stated he serves on the Kodiak City Council, but is
representing hinmself today. The fishery work group, which he
co-chairs, and a joint work session he participated in between
the Kodiak Island Borough and the city council last week
di scussed the CFA issue. He said he manages a processing plant
in Kodiak and is engaged in the trawl fishing industry, although
he also participates with a mx of vessels including pot boats,
I ongliners, and seiners. He suggested that the commttee
consider a balanced point of view, noting the lack of 100
percent consensus for CFAs in Kodi ak. He surmi sed that of the
34 vessels currently fishing, nost would say they aren't in
favor of CFAs since they are concerned about outcones

Certainly sone coalition nenbers are 100 percent in favor of
CFAs; however, it's inportant to strike a bal ance, he said. He
agreed that CFAs could be part of the solution set to ensure
that the Kodiak econony is strong, but all three sectors - the
trawl sector, the fish and harvesting sector, and the processing
sector - nust each be healthy to have a healthy conmunity. He
said the sectors have a synbiotic relationship. He mai nt ai ned
that the CFAs are only one approach to consider, but it may
ultimately need to be a conbination of solutions. For exanple

one thing to consider in terms of ownership issues is that
corporate ownership of vessels in sonme ways circunvents and
negates any inpact of the [NPFMC] notions. He maintained that

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- March 25, 2014



in Kodiak, diversity resides around the [CFA] issue. If this
approach would positively inmpact the trawl industry, he wll
support it; however, if it wll result in a net loss to the
traw industry, another approach m ght need to be considered.

10: 22: 16 AM

DAVE KUBI AK stated he has been in Kodiak since the 1960s, and is
currently a salnon permt holder, has sonme halibut |IFQ, and has
jigged for codfish. He urged nenbers to pass HCR 25 to include
CFAs as part of the rationalization plan for the Gulf of Al aska
traw fleet. He described a nunber of problens the fisheries
face such as absentee ownership, fewer |[|ocally-based vessels,
high |ease fees, rapid vessel consolidation, consolidation of
guota ownership, lower crew pay, and fewer crew jobs that have
resulted fromrationalization in the world.

MR. KUBI AK said the CFAs could represent a neans of countering
many of the consequences through |ocal control over a portion of
rationalized fishing rights, which could be done by CFAs joining

a cooperative. Proponents of CFAs view the associations as a
method to ensure |local fishernmen, skippers, and crews can
continue to participate and conmunities wll stay healthy.
Further, CFAs wll effectively anchor quota to comrunities in
perpetuity, which wll support new generations of fishernen, he
sai d. The initial allocation anplifies the conmunity benefit,
he said. He pointed out that the value of quota arises as soon
as a fishery is rationalized. Any deleterious effects of
al l ocation against the current participants will be aneliorated
by this since he assumed it would be acconplished through a
private non-profit approach, who would Ilikely take out
adm ni strative fees. He urged nenbers to vote to nove this

forward so CFAs can be further exam ned by the NPFMC.

10: 25:18 AM

EM L CHRISTIANSEN, Secretary, Od Harbor Native Corporation,
stated his support for HCR 25. He said he has been fishing for
55 years - he started fishing when he was six with his dad. He
said he has seen changes and "seen people do things that have so
much affect against the villages, that we need to stop this and
we need to |look at the future of our children and the State of
Al aska." He asked for support for HCR 25, for the future of the
coastal fishing comunities.

10: 26: 24 AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -7- March 25, 2014



FREDDI E CHRI STI ANSEN, Secretary, O d Harbor Native Corporation

said he was born in Kodiak, raised in Ad Harbor, and has fished
for 48 years. He disagreed with the comment with respect to the
community of Kodiak having a diverse view. The six villages on
Kodi ak |sland have |ost access to the resource adjacent to the

communi ties. He objected to all the fish being processed in
Kodiak since it comes from the villages. He found this
unaccept abl e. He could recount his experiences with the |FQ
program that was inplenented in the Bering Sea but not in the
@l f of Al aska. In all of his time spent wth fishing
organi zations, he has not experienced or observed the state
taking the responsibility to care for the comunities. The
villagers have their "backs against the wall"™ and are very

di sappointed wth the current process.

CHAIR SEATON related his wunderstanding that M. Christensen
supports passage of HCR 25.

MR. CHRI STI ANSEN agr eed.

10: 28: 30 AM

THERESA PETERSON, Kodiak Qutreach Coordinator, Alaska Marine
Conservation Council (AMCC), stated support for HCR 25. She
said what the current options lack is an opportunity to anchor
guota to the communities. The state has done a great job to
date with bringing the notion forward and considering a new
program design. She said the HCRis on the right track

CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony on HCR 25.

10: 29: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FEIGE noved to report HCR 25 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not e. There being no objection, HCR 25 was reported from the
House Special Comrittee on Fisheries.

10: 30: 01 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Conmittee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 10:30
a. m

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 8- March 25, 2014



